
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 

December 5, 2002 – 6:00 P.M. 
Hardee County Public Health Unit – Conference Room 

115 K.D. Revell Road, Wauchula, Florida  
 

MINUTES 
 

Planning and Zoning Board   Staff 
James Barncord, present    Building & Zoning Director, T. Mike Cassidy, present 
Don Chancey, present    County Manager, Lex Albriton, absent 
Roger Conley, present    County Attorney, Ken Evers, present 
Dan Graham, Vice-Chairman, present  B/Z Office Manager, B. J. Haney, present 
Charles Nicholson, present   B/Z Executive Secretary, Tina Huntsman, present 
Carl Saunders, arrived at 6:30 P.M. 
Fred Small, present 
Vida Tomlinson, Chairman, present 

       Joan Seaman, Herald Advocate present 
 
Chairman Tomlinson called the Regular Meeting to order at 6:00 P.M.; roll taken; quorum present. 
 
Huntsman advised the Public Notice for the Regular Meeting was published in The Herald-Advocate on 
November 21, 2002 and November 28, 2002. Affidavit of Publication is on file. 

 
Cassidy advised courtesy notices were mailed to adjoining property owners, and all advertisements were 
properly posted. 
 
Attorney Evers read Planning and Zoning Board’s General Rules of Procedure and administered oath to all 
who wished to give testimony. 
 
MOTION by Conley, second by Barncord to approve Minutes of 11/07/02 Regular Meeting, Motion carried 
unanimously.  
 
MOTION by Chancey, second by Graham to acknowledge receipt of “NOTES” of the November 14, 2002, Joint 
Meeting with BCC to receive 2002-2003 Annual Reports from IMC Phosphates.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Tomlinson pointed out the Planning and Zoning Agenda shows that the BCC held a Joint Meeting on January 
14, 2002 with the Planning and Zoning Board to receive the 2002-2003 Annual Report from IMC Phosphates 
Company. Absent a quorum, the BCC was advised that at the next regularly-scheduled Planning and Zoning 
Meeting the Planning and Zoning Board would offer a recommendation for approval or disapproval to the 
BCC. 
 
Doug Knight, Hardee County Mining Coordinator, 101 South 9 th Avenue, Wauchula, Florida was present and 
sworn. Knight stated that as of 12/05/02 the bond issue with IMC had not been resolved. 
 
Motion by Conley, second by Small to recommend Denial to the Board of County Commissioners of the 2002-
2003 Annual Report from IMC Phosphates Company, based on insufficient financial information provided. 
Motion carried with Graham voting no. 
 
Chairman was requested to move Agenda 03-12 to first item for consideration. 
 

Agenda 03-12 
 

Tomlinson advised of a request from Arthur H./Anita L. Melendy, by and through their Authorized 
Representative for approval of a Rezone of 40MOL ac from F-R (Farm -Residential) to A-1 (Agricultural) on or 
about SR 62, Hardee County. 

  
Chancey stated that this issue presented a conflict of interest. Document Form8B Memorandum Of Voting 
Conflict For County, Municipal, and Other Local Public Officers was signed by Chancey and is on file with the 
original minutes. 
 
David Garcia, representative of Six L’s, was present, and sworn. Garcia requested the Melendy application for 
a Rezone be withdrawn. 



 
MOTION by Nicholson, second by Barncord to acknowledge application has been withdrawn. Motion carried 
unanimously.  

 
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING     -2-              DECEMBER 5, 2002 
MINUTES 
 
 
Agenda 03-11 
 

(NOTE) to record, Agenda item 03-12 was withdrawn and Agenda item 03-11 is null and void. 
 
Agenda 03-04 

 
Tomlinson advised of a request from Michael P. Patton for a Exception to Policy L1.15 of the “Comp Plan” to 
allow transfer of a parcel from the 13.65MOL acre parent parcel to immediate family member (daughter) for 
primary place of residence, A-1 (Agricultural) on or about SR 66, Hardee County. 

 
Each Board Member and County Staff received a copy of Application for an Exception to Policy L1.15 and Staff  
Report for review prior to the 12/05/02 meeting. 
 
Cassidy highlighted the Staff Report including the conclusion, recommendation for approval, and 
recommended  
condition. Cassidy submitted the report to record as evidence, no objections were presented. 

  
 Tomlinson called for Public Input; none was received. 
 
 Neither property owner nor representative was present.  
 
 Tomlinson called for Board Questions; none were received. 
  

MOTION by Nicholson, with a condition to approval, must transfer no less than 2.5 acres, second by Small to 
recommend approval to the Board of County Commissioners of the request for a Exception to Policy L1.15 to 
allow transfer of a parcel from the 13.65MOL acre parent parcel to immediate family member (daughter) for 
primary place of residence based on staff’s findings, conclusion, recommendation, and recommended 
condition, and based on the testimony received and the evidence presented at the public hearing. Motion 
carried unanimously.  

 
Tomlinson advised that BCC will receive a recommendation from the Planning/Zoning Board and will hold a 
public hearing on 12/19/02; 1:30 P.M. at Hardee County Health Unit – Conference Room, Wauchula, Florida. 

 
Agenda 03-05 

 
Tomlinson advised of a request from Mary Jane/Edward D. Albritton for an Exception to Policy L1.15 of the 
“Comp Plan” to allow transfer of a parcel from the 2.90MOL acre parent parcel to immediate family member 
(son) for primary place of residence, F-R (Farm-Residential) on or about Old Bradenton Road, Hardee County. 

 
Each Board Member and County Staff received a copy of Application for an Exception to Policy L1.15 and Staff  
Report for review prior to the 12/05/02 meeting. 

 
Cassidy highlighted the Staff Report including the conclusion, recommendation for approval, and 
recommended  
condition. Cassidy submitted the report to record as evidence, no objections were presented. 

  
Tomlinson called for Public Input; none was received. 
 

 Neither property owner nor representative was present. 
 

Tomlinson called for Board Questions. Board inquired and Cassidy advised that 1.0acre is  the minimum 
parcel size for development permits for F-R zoned districts. 
 
MOTION by Conley, second by Chancey to recommend approval to the Board of County Commissioners of the 



request for a Exception to Policy L1.15 to allow transfer of a parcel from the 2.90MOL acre parent parcel to 
immediate family member (son) for primary place of residence based on staff’s findings, conclusion, 
recommendation, and recommended condition, and based on the testimony received and the evidence 
presented at the public hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Tomlinson advised that BCC will receive a recommendation from the Planning/Zoning Board and will hold a 
public hearing on 12/19/02; 1:30 P.M. at Hardee County Health Unit – Conference Room, Wauchula, Florida. 

 
Agenda 03-07 

 
Tomlinson advised of a request from R. Todd Garrett for a Exception to Policy L1.15 of the “Comp Plan” to 
allow transfer of a 10 acre parcel from the 20MOL acre parent parcel to immediate family member (father) for 
primary place of residence, A-1 (Agricultural) on or about Roy Moore Road, Hardee County. 

 
PLANNING & ZONING    -3-              DECEMBER 5, 2002 
MINUTES 
 
 

Each Board Member and County Staff received a copy of Application for an Exception to Policy L1.15 and Staff  
Report for review prior to the 12/05/02 meeting. 

 
Cassidy highlighted the Staff Report including the conclusion, recommendation for approval, and 
recommended  
condition.  Cassidy submitted the report to record as evidence, no objections were presented. 

  
 Tomlinson called for Public Input. 
 

Brenda Burns, 42145 South Prairie View, Sarasota, identified herself as neighboring property owner, and was 
sworn. Burns expressed objection to recommendation approval of the request. 
 
Neither property owner nor representative was present. 

  
Tomlinson called for Board Questions; none were received. 

  
MOTION by Nicholson with a condition to approval, must transfer no less than 10 acres, second by Chancey to 
recommend approval to the Board of County Commissioners of the request for an Exception to Policy L1.15 to 
allow transfer of parcel from the 20MOL acre parent parcel to immediate family member (father) for primary 
place of residence based on staff’s findings, conclusion, recommendation, and recommended condition, and 
based on the testimony received and the evidence presented at the public hearing. Motion carried 
unanimously.  

 
Tomlinson advised that BCC will receive a recommendation from the Planning/Zoning Board and will hold a 
public hearing on 12/19/02; 1:30 P.M. at Hardee County Health Unit – Conference Room, Wauchula, Florida. 

 
Agenda 03-08 

 
Tomlinson advised of a request from Hoyt E., Sr. / Joan Terrell for a Exception to Policy L1.15 of the “Comp 
Plan” to allow transfer of a parcel from the 18.20MOL acre parent parcel to immediate family member 
(daughter) for primary place of residence, A-1 (Agricultural) on or about Bost / Popash Roads, Hardee County. 

 
Each Board Member and County Staff received a copy of Application for an Exception to Policy L1.15 and Staff  
Report for review prior to the 12/05/02 meeting. 

 
Cassidy highlighted the Staff Report including the conclusion, recommendation for approval, and 
recommended  
condition.  Cassidy submitted the report to record as evidence, no objections were presented. 

  
 Tomlinson called for Public Input; none was received. 
 
 Hoyt E. Terrell, Sr., property owner was present and sworn in.  
 

Tomlinson called for Board questions.  Board discussed issue of transfer with Terrell.  Board inquired and 
Cassidy advised that 1.0acre is the minimum parcel size for development permits for F-R zoned districts. 

  



MOTION by Chancey, second by Saunders to recommend approval to the Board of County Commissioners of 
the request for a Exception to Policy L1.15 to allow transfer of a parcel from the 18.20MOL acre parent parcel 
to immediate family member (daughter) for primary place of residence based on staff’s findings, conclusion, 
recommendation, and recommended condition, and based on the testimony received and the evidence 
presented at the public hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Tomlinson advised that BCC will receive a recommendation from the Planning/Zoning Board and will hold a 
public hearing on 12/19/02; 1:30 P.M. at Hardee County Health Unit – Conference Room, Wauchula, Florida. 

 
Agenda 03-09 
 

Tomlinson advised of a request from C.R. Jr. / Pearl L. Powell for an Exception to Policy L1.15 of the “Comp 
Plan” to allow transfer of a parcel from the 20MOL acre parent parcel to immediate family member (son) for 
primary place of residence, F-R (Farm-Residential) on or about Old Bradenton Road / Polk Road, Hardee 
County. 

 
Each Board Member and County Staff received a copy of Application for an Exception to Policy L1.15 and Staff  
Report for review prior to the 12/05/02 meeting. 

 
Cassidy highlighted the Staff Report including the conclusion, recommendation for approval, and 
recommended  
condition. Cassidy submitted the report to record as evidence, no objections were presented. 

 
 
PLANNING & ZONING   -4-               DECEMBER 5, 2002 
MINUTES 
 
 
 Tomlinson called for Public Input; none was received. 
 
 Neither property owner nor representative was present. 
 

Tomlinson called for Board Questions. Board inquired and Cassidy advised that 1.0acre is the minimum 
parcel size for development permits for F-R zoned districts. 

  
MOTION by Chancey, second by Graham to recommend approval to the Board of County Commissioners of 
the request for a Exception to Policy L1.15 to allow transfer of a no less than 1.0 acre parcel from the 20MOL 
acre parent parcel to immediate family member (son) for primary place of residence based on staff’s findings, 
conclusion, recommendation, and recommended condition, and based on the testimony received and the 
evidence presented at the public hearing. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Tomlinson advised that BCC will receive a recommendation from the Planning/Zoning Board and will hold a  
public hearing on 12/19/02; 1:30 P.M. at Hardee County Health Unit – Conference Room, Wauchula, Florida. 

 
Agenda 03-10 

 
Tomlinson advised of a request from James L./Audrey Swailes for an Exception to Policy L1.15 of the “Comp 
Plan” to allow transfer of a parcel from the 11MOL acre parent parcel to immediate family member (wife) for 
primary place of residence, A-1 (Agricultural) on or about SR 64E, Hardee County. 

 
Each Board Member and County Staff received a copy of Application for an Exception to Policy L1.15 and Staff  
report for review prior to the 12/05/02 meeting. 

 
Cassidy highlighted the Staff Report including the conclusion, recommendation for approval, and 
recommended  
condition.  Cassidy submitted the report to record as evidence, no objections were presented. 

 
 Tomlinson called for Public Input; none was received. 
 
 Neither property owner nor representative was present. 
 

Tomlinson called for Board Questions. Board inquired and Cassidy advised that under the “old comp plan” 
2.5 acre was the minimum parcel size for development permits for A-1 zoned districts under an “Exception to 



Policy L1.15”. 
 
MOTION by Nicholson, with a condition to approval, must transfer no less than 2.5acres, second by Small to 
recommend approval to the Board of County Commissioners of the request for a Exception to Policy L1.15 to 
allow transfer of parcel from the 11MOL acre parent parcel to immediate family member (wife) for primary 
place of residence based on staff’s findings, conclusion, recommendation, and recommended condition, and 
based on the testimony received and the evidence presented at the public hearing. Motion carried 
unanimously.  

 
Tomlinson advised that BCC will receive a recommendation from the Planning/Zoning Board and will hold a 
public hearing on 12/19/02; 1:30 P.M. at Hardee County Health Unit – Conference Room, Wauchula, Florida. 

 
Agenda 03-06 
 

Tomlinson advised of a request from J.R. Paul Jr. Family Limited Partnership by and through its Authorized 
Representative Timothy P. Wheat, Regional Vice President of Pinnacle Housing Group for a Rezone of 
9.73MOL acres from the 31.67MOL acre parent parcel from F-R (Farm-Residential) to R-3 (Multiple Family 
Residential) on or about South Florida Avenue, Hardee County. 

 
Each Board Member and County Staff received a copy of Application for a Rezone and Staff Report for review 
prior to the 12/05/02 meeting. 

 
Cassidy highlighted the Staff Report including the conclusion, recommendation for approval, and 
recommended  
condition. Cassidy submitted the report to record as evidence, no objections were presented. 

  
Representative Timothy P. Wheat was present and sworn. Wheat presented an overview of the proposed 
project and advised that approximate costs for (monthly) rents for: 

one bedroom apartments:  $350 to upper $400s; 
two-bedroom apartment:  $400 to upper $500s; 
three-bedroom apartments: $500 to upper $600s. 

 
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING    -5-              DECEMBER 5, 2002 
MINUTES 
 
 

Wheat pointed out that although the Staff Report identified the project as 120 units, the he proposed project is 
for 116 units. 
 
Wheat advised the project will not be for low-income housing. 

 
Tomlinson called for Public Input. 

 
David Green, 318 Causey Road, Wauchula, Florida, was present and identified himself as a neighboring 
property owner. Green was sworn and objected to Rezone. 

 
Doris Lambert, 402 South 6 th Avenue, Wauchula, Florida was present and sworn. Lambert advised that her 
real estate office regularly receives inquiries about rental property in amounts not as great as Wheat 
proposed. 

  
Tomlinson called for Board Questions; none received. 

  
MOTION by Small, second by Barncord to recommend approval to the Board of County Commissioners of the 
request for a Rezone, based on the staff findings, conclusion, recommendation for approval and based on the 
testimony received and the evidence presented at the public hearing. Motion carried with Chancey and 
Graham voting no. 

 
Tomlinson advised that BCC will receive a recommendation from the Planning/Zoning Board and will hold a 
public hearing on 12/19/02; 1:30 P.M. at Hardee County Health Unit – Conference Room, Wauchula, Florida. 



 
Agenda 03-03 

 
Tomlinson advised of a request from Charles A. Barton Jr. for a Variance to the minor subdivision 
requirements  
 
of the Hardee County Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) for a 40MOL-acre parcel, A-1 (Agricultural) on 
or about SR 66, Hardee County. 

 
Each Board Member and County Staff received a copy of Application for a Variance and Staff  report for review 
prior to the 12/05/02 meeting. 

 
Cassidy highlighted the Staff Report including the conclusion, recommendation for denial, and recommended 
condition. Cassidy submitted the report to record as evidence, no objections were presented. 

  
 Tomlinson called for Public Input. 
 
 Neither property owner nor representative was present. 
 

Letter of objection from Kathleen Johnson and David Wilkins dated August 27, 2002, entered into evidence 
and on file with original minutes. 

  
Dave Wilkins, identified himself as a neighboring property owner and was sworn. Wilkins expressed 
concerns regarding drainage issues. 

 
 Tomlinson called for Board Questions. Board discussed drainage issues and requirements with Wilkins. 
  

MOTION by Chancey, second by Small to recommend denial to the Board of County Commissioners of the 
request for a Variance to the minor subdivision requirements of the Unified Land Development Code for a 
40MOL-acre parcel based on staff’s findings, conclusion, recommendations for denial, and based on the 
testimony received and the evidence presented at the public hearing. Motion carried unanimously.  

 
Tomlinson advised that BCC will receive a recommendation from the Planning/Zoning Board and will hold a 
public hearing on 12/19/02; 1:30 P.M. at Hardee County Health Unit – Conference Room, Wauchula, Florida. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 None presented. 
 
 Haney reminded the Board: 

CF Industries’ Annual Report (P&Z Board has been given copies of the Report) Joint meeting w/ BCC 
Conference Room, Hardee County Public Health Unit, Thursday, December 12, 2002, 5:30P.M. 

 
 

PLANNING & ZONING    -6-               DECEMBER 5, 2002 
MINUTES 
 
 

Next Regular Planning/Zoning Meeting, Thursday, January 9, 2003, 6:00 P.M. 
 Board to elect Chairman and Vice-Chairman 

 
Upon MOTION by Saunders, second by Conley to schedule February, 2003 Planning and Zoning regular 
meeting for February 13, 2003, 6:00 P.M. 

 
Planning and Zoning will hear the Rezone, Major Special Exception and Variance requests from IMC 
Phosphates Co., for its Ona Mine, and will hear a request for approval of a DRI, approval of a Master 
Mining Plan, approval of an NOPC, and approval for the initial Annual Unit Review, on February 13, 
2002. 

 
Board members will need to bring your copy of the April, 2000 IMC Consolidated Development 
Application for the Ona Mine, and the September, 2002 IMC Master Mining and Reclamation Plan – 
Ona Mine. Copies for distribution will not be available at the meeting. Board members need to be in 
attendance at this joint meeting; it is essential that we have a quorum. 



 
Upon MOTION by Conley, second by Sanders, the Planning/Zoning Regular Meeting was adjourned at 7:30 
P.M. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Tina M. Huntsman 
Building & Zoning Executive Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D:\planning & zoning\120502 


